Net Zero Societal Change – Evidence and analysis ITT
Clarification questions and answers

Where more than one bidder has raised the same/similar question these are represented in wording that captures the general point raised rather than list multiple questions asking the same thing. 

Budget and timelines
Question: Does the maximum budget of £120,000 (exc VAT) cover work package 4? Can you provide guidance on how to cost WP4? 
A: The maximum budget for this work includes work package 4. 
We would like to reiterate what we have outlined in the ITT on page 27 on the specification and outputs required for WP4:
We recognise this work package will be dependent on, and informed by, the outputs from the scoping study in work package 3. Bidders should set out an initial view on an approach or an example approach that they would consider using to address objective 2 as part of this work as outlined in the outline specification and output for WP4. This initial / example approach should be used for pricing/costing purposes on the pricing schedule (i.e. bidders should propose an initial approach for WP4 and cost this).

Question: Can the tender deadline be extended?
A: We have extended the submission date by 6 days to provide bidders with additional time to develop proposals whilst maintaining a sufficient time period from the contract award date to the deadline of delivering the first work package. The new timetable is outlined below.
	Tender Timeline
	Date

	Advert and full invitation to tender issued
	27/05/2020

	Deadline for questions relating to the tender
	10/06/2020 (14:00) 

	Responses to questions published 
	11/06/2020 

	Deadline for receipt of tender
	22/06/2020 (23:59) 

	Invite suppliers for bid clarification (if needed)
	24/06/2020 

	All suppliers alerted of outcome
	26/06/20 

	Contract award on signature by both parties
	29/06/20 

	
	01/07/20 

	Contract start date
	



Question: Is the September deadline for WP1 fixed? Or could this be extended, allowing more of a parallel delivery of WP1 and WP2, since the findings in WP2 may have relevance for WP1?
A: Bidders should assume a default deadline for WP1 as per the tender documents. However, where bidders feel and demonstrate that there would be clear benefit to extending this to align with other work packages then they are able to suggest this as an additional option but should also be able to deliver the work to the deadline set out in the tender. 

Question: The contract is specified to be for a period of 9 months (ITT p6) with the expected start date of 29 June 2020, however the tentative end date is given as January 2021 (ITT p19-20), which is a duration of 6 months (not 9 months). Please could you clarify the project duration and start and end dates that should be used in planning the work?
A: The tentative end date of January 2021 should be used for developing the tender. 

Question: We note that WP3 is scheduled to be delivered in Aug 2020. Bearing in mind this timeline, do you envisage that WP1 and 2 will feed into WP3 considering WP1 is due in Sept 2020 and WP2 in Dec 2020?
A: The deadline for WP3 comes earlier than those for WP1 and WP2 (so final outputs from these would not be able to feed into WP3). 

Question: Given the current covid-19 situation and personal and professional demands on many people in various organisations; do you envisage any delays in the delivery timetable of this contract or indeed an extension to the tender deadline? 
A: We have extended the tender deadline as per prior question. Bidders may wish to consider risks and mitigation strategies to the delivery timetable as part of their bids. 

Question: Can contractors/suppliers cost the project using our own funding methods such as 100% full economic costs? 
A: Bidders can cost the project as they feel appropriate providing it is in line with the pricing guidance in the tender documents. 



Contract
Question: Is it possible to negotiate the terms of the contract or are these fixed? 
A: The terms attached are the standard terms and conditions issued by BEIS. If they wish, bidders can ask clarification questions regarding specific elements of the terms and we can respond on these.
Question: Can an expert be included in more than one bid? 
A: Yes, there is not an issue with this and it will not affect the evaluation of bids. 
Question - Levels of insurance: Declaration 4 – Standard Selection Questionnaire – Part 3 – Section 9 of the of the questionnaire has no values for the levels of insurance required so it is not possible to self-certify. Please can you clarify the levels of insurance required?
A: The levels of insurance required are as follows: The Employer’s (Compulsory) Liability Insurance expected will be £5 million as a minimum. Please note this requirement is not applicable to Sole Traders.
Public Liability Insurance = £1 million minimum
Professional Indemnity Insurance = £1 million minimum
Product Liability Insurance = £1 million minimum

Question: A bidder suggested changes to wording in various places to the contract terms. 
A: BEIS uses standard terms and conditions which are attached to the award notice. By bidding for the procurement, the supplier agrees to accept BEIS terms and conditions. Very minor amendments which do not affect the material conditions or positions will be reviewed by BEIS prior to contract award. 

Question: Does the 25 page limit include or exclude CVs?
A: This excludes CVs. 
Question: Who signs off final report? 
A: The final report will be signed off by senior policy and analysts as is standard in research contracts. 

Question: The ITT sets out that 2-3 drafts of the report are likely to be required and that sufficient time needs to be allowed for review and comments of each draft which should be built into the timeline. Please could you advise: a) how much time is required for BEIS to review each draft?; and b) does the 2-3 drafts review requirement apply only to the final Synthesis report, or does it also apply to the publishable report output from Work Package 2?
A: This is a guideline based on previous projects. The timing for review can be minimised with clear timetables on when we expect to receive the drafts so we can plan to review them as soon as possible. The sign off process will apply for all of the deliverables listed on page 19-20 of the ITT, and is particularly important for publishable outcomes. 

Question: Do you envisage any challenges (i.e. time pressures, lack of engagement, securing buy-in, stakeholder availability, etc.)? 

None at this stage. Bidders may wish to consider risks and mitigation strategies to the delivery timetable as part of their bids.




Methodology
Question: Do we assume that any recommended UK strategies for net zero will interface with the European Commission ones for reaching net zero effectively? 
No such starting assumption is required. 
Question: Cross cutting interventions can include a range of activities but are not directly related to the energy system.  Can you indicate how in-depth you would like these to be referenced in the proposal? 
The reference to cross-cutting initiatives was to emphasise that we are not anticipating bidders to go in-depth into interventions relating to individual behaviours (e.g. walking, electric vehicles, heating etc) and instead whether the evidence from this work identifies opportunities that are of a more cross-cutting nature (e.g. span a range of behaviours etc) that could help to facilitate societal change in support of net zero. Some examples have been provided in the tender document. 
Question: The ITT states that ‘All research tools and sampling methodologies will need to be agreed by BEIS’ (p22), please could you advise whether this applies to, for example, interview and workshop schedules and interviewee/participant lists, and, how much time BEIS requires to review and approve? 
Yes, if any workshops/interviews are planned the material for these should be shared for review. The time required will depend on what method is proposed and recommend bidders propose proportionate/appropriate timeframes; for straightforward qualitative material a minimum of a week in advance can be common. 
Question: Do you have existing criteria relating to the validity of evidence (e.g. age of evidence) 
Bidders should suggest appropriate criteria for assessing the validity of evidence as these often differ depending on the context/scope of projects. 
Question: What should the balance be between UK, Europe and Global focus for the evidence review (e.g. % weighting)?
As per above question, this may be something bidders wish to consider. 
Question: Page 12 of the tender suggests that “The actions/emissions accountable to businesses and other organisations are not likely to be in scope of this research, except where contractors feel it is necessary to include/not appropriate to disentangle people’s behaviour in work.”. However, we would suggest that sustained behaviour change requires systemic change, which will in turn requires policy interventions and action by business. How are tenderers expected to exclude businesses from the analysis? 
We remain open to suggestions from bidders as to how to deal with this interlinkage. The main point we were trying to emphasise is that the focus of this report is on the societal dimensions of net zero and bidders are not anticipated to have a primary focus on how to get e.g. businesses or industry to reduce their greenhouse gas emissions or focus extensively on the business energy policy landscape.  
Question: Work Package 1 refers to considering the distributional impacts. Could you please expand on this a little, as we believe this could be interpreted in a number of ways - what are you expecting here, specifically?
We are looking to understand evidence that already exists on the potential distributional impacts any changes, positive or negative, to behaviours identified could have on different groups of consumers e.g., (but not limited to) people living in rural areas, pensioner age, those with a disability or chronic illness and low income households. For example, shifting some behaviours may have bigger implications/considerations for low income / vulnerable groups than other behaviours. 

Question: For RQ1.3: 
· Will the relevant government departments be able to provide a summary of all relevant policies? 
· Do you anticipate a need to also review sub- and supra-national policies? 

This research question is an important question for the project. We are unable provide a summary of all relevant policies – we will be able to provide details of some of these. 
We anticipate the primary focus should be national level policies (though this includes those that may have come from/been implemented as a result of supra-national policies or may inform sub-national actions) but bidders are able to suggest additions to this. 

Q37: Page 13 of the ITT suggests that meeting Objective 1 requires “Evidence on emission reduction potential from these societal changes and, importantly, (positive and negative) interactions with existing government policies” to be set out. Are tenderers expected to undertake their own modelling of these impacts?
We anticipate that the ‘emission reduction potential’ of different behavioural changes sitting under objective 1 (i.e. RQ1.2) will rely on existing evidence (although if bidders feel they are able to model these impacts within the budget/scope of the project then they are able to do this). 

Question: For the international review proposed in Work Package 2, are there specific jurisdictions that BEIS and Defra would like this work to target? Can you provide insight into how BEIS and Defra would expect consultants to prioritise jurisdictions?
We have no pre-identified suggestions for this. There are some relevant existing evidence sources that span a range of jurisdications (e.g.: this has paper has just been published http://www.oecd.org/gov/innovative-citizen-participation-and-new-democratic-institutions-339306da-en.htm). We remain open to suggestions for how get best value / maximum insight from international lessons and examples.  

Question: Are there any ‘best in class’ examples within the UK Government where behaviours and preferences have been incorporated into government decision-making and whole-systems modelling? Is there any opportunity to leverage lessons learned from other departments?
We are not able to identify these. 

Question: Work Package 2 (WP2) - Is it acceptable for bidders to propose in their methodologies a limit on the countries or geographical areas to be covered in the WP2 ‘International review of climate engagement, communication and public participation initiatives’?
Yes that is acceptable. 

Question: For the international review proposed in Work Package 2, are there specific jurisdictions that BEIS and Defra would like this work to target? Can you provide insight into how BEIS and Defra would expect consultants to prioritise jurisdictions?
We have no pre-identified suggestions for this. There are some relevant existing evidence sources that span a range of jurisdications (e.g.: http://www.oecd.org/gov/innovative-citizen-participation-and-new-democratic-institutions-339306da-en.htm). We remain open to suggestions for how get best value / maximum insight from international lessons and examples.  

Question: In the methodology in WP3, you state that bidders do not need to have familiarity the UKTIMES model specifically. In WP4, you state that contractors will need to work closely with BEIS and Defra to ensure outputs are easily translatable into government models. Does this mean that outputs from this study will need to be overlaid on the UKTIMES model, or are there other whole system models or other specific Government models that may be used whilst integrating outputs in WP4?

A: Bidders do not need to have familiarity with UKTIMES specifically. We would expect bidders to work closely with BEIS and Defra to ensure that the proposed methodology is compatible with whole system modelling in WP3 if a quantitative methodological approach is proposed. Implementation of the approach in WP4 and the specific models used would depend on the approach suggested. Alternatively, bidders could consider approaches outside of modelling.
 
Question: Work Package 3 refers to incorporating behaviours into pathway and whole-systems modelling. Does the scope also extend to models that feed into pathway modelling, such as discrete transport models, power sector models, etc? Please can you indicate which types of models the project refers to?
We expect the majority of current methodological limitations and challenges in incorporating evidence on societal change would be common across whole-system models and sectoral models and any framework developed to address these could, but not necessarily, build on a bottom-up approach. Implementation of the approach in WP4 and the specific models used would depend on the approach suggested. 

Question: Please can you indicate the timing of modelling outputs that evidence will feed into? (e.g. 2/3/4/5/10 years etc?) 
We have not specified this as any potential modelling package taken forward as part of WP4 and the specific models used would depend on the approach suggested in WP3. Given the stated aim to inform policy development and wider work analysing pathways to Net Zero and Carbon budgets we would expect that, where applicable, any modelling approach taken forward would be capable of providing outputs in 5 year intervals or less. 

Question: In terms of the whole energy system, are there specific groups or industries you would like us to address – i.e. what is the context to the energy system boundaries? 
The ‘whole system’ scope specified in the contract includes all the major flows of energy: electricity generation, fuel production, heating and energy use in buildings, energy use in industry, and transportation of people and freight in addition to natural resources and land-use considerations. In the context of "net zero" the system boundaries are defined by the UK's Climate Change Act that requires a 100% reduction in net UK emissions in carbon dioxide and all other target greenhouse gases. 

Question: On WP4, please can you clarify:
a. How many scenarios would expect this to cover (excluding baseline)?  
b. Are the scenarios expected to be built around key underlying trends only or do you expect that these could/should also cover how different policy options are expected to interact with future trends? 
We are unable to comment on these fully as we remain open to methodological suggestions as to how best address objective 2, and will depend on methodologies suggested by bidders (both indicatively in the bid and then through the proposal developed in WP3). For example, a bidder could suggest no more than 3-4 scenarios or they may adopt different analytical techniques that relies on a larger set of scenarios or does not use scenarios at all. Similarly, for the second question, this is likely to depend on methodologies suggested. The first suggestion of using scenarios built around underlying trends to then aid development of policy options could be an appropriate approach.   


Available evidence 
Question: Page 12 of the ITT mentions that “A separate piece of work to this contract is also likely to carry out social research with citizen perceptions of net zero (e.g. perceptions of net zero and what they believe it will entail, how people believe it will affect their lifestyles…)”. 
a. Will this piece feed into or from the Net Zero Societal change?
b. Will this piece be going out to tender? 
This is still in development, so we are unable to comment at this stage. 

Question: Are there existing internal evidence assessments available – e.g. relating to certain low carbon behaviours
Bidders should assume that there are no existing internal evidence assessments.  

Question: Are there any existing mapping of government polices? 
Bidders should assume there are no existing mapping or evidence reviews available. Where we have information / lists we will try to feed these in but they should not be relied upon.
Question – timeline of data?
Any necessary timelines have been included within the ITT. 
Question: When it comes to identifying and prioritising behaviours – other than the reports cited in the ITT, are there any other existing research sources which identify behaviours? Do BEIS and Defra expect the behaviours identified in the Committee on Climate Change: Behaviour change, public engagement and Net Zero to be the priority for this work?
There are other external reports other than those mentioned in the ITT, contactors could consider conducting a light touch review of this existing evidence. The behaviours identified in the CCC report will feature in this project alongside other behaviours. 

Will this work be expected to incorporate findings from the Climate Assembly UK report? How do you expect the findings of that initiative to inform this work, if at all?
This remains for the bidders to consider. 



Government partners and stakeholders
Question: What will be the nature of involvement of government organisations other than BEIS/Defra with an interest in the project (e.g. Ofgem, DfT)? And how does BEIS/Defra envisage coordinating input/engagement from across those government organisations. What would the role of the contractor be in this? Will there be a steering group between government departments and the supplier?
Question: What level of engagement do you expect to ensure alignment with other departments (e.g. note meetings with DEFRA and BEIS)? 
Achieving Net Zero is a cross-government ambition. Project updates and requests for input will be shared with the group via the project team (comprised of both BEIS and Defra). It is likely that the supplier will present findings and outputs to the Working Group and Steering Board (comprising a range of departments) when they are available. This contract management and interactions of this should be treated as per normal contracts with government – in this instance the project team in government crosscuts Defra and BEIS, and the output dissemination/presentations will likely involve a number of departments simultaneously. The contract and the project will be managed directly by BEIS and Defra in a combined manner. 

The supplier may (or may not) opt to have separate discussions with government organisations as part of delivering the project; BEIS and Defra will try to facilitate these relations.
Question: Do BEIS intend to include any external stakeholder engagement exercises within the scope of the project?
We remain open to suggestions from bidders as to whether to include external stakeholder engagement exercises within their approach.

Question: We feel the tender is clear on how this work will support BEIS, but it would be useful to understand: how does Defra intend to use the research outputs?

Achieving Net Zero is a cross-government ambition. The research outputs will be used by all relevant government departments to inform policy thinking relating to net zero public engagement and behaviour/societal change.

Question: Who do you see as key internal and external stakeholders for this project? Are there specific external stakeholders you would like to be included and do you already have a relationship with them? 

The supplier will not be responsible for engaging directly with internal stakeholders – project managers in BEIS and Defra will facilitate these relations where necessary. We remain open to suggestions from bidders on engaging with external stakeholders and can advise on any specific existing relationships when relevant. 

Question: Is there anything else happening internally relating to this project (initiatives, milestones, etc.) that would be useful for us to be aware of? 
The deadline for WP3 is important so that it can link in with wider analysis relating to carbon budgets. 

